OF

TIMBERCREEK II, PHASE III HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION

ARTICLE I Names, Offices, and Definitions

- <u>Section 1</u>. *Name*. The name of the corporation is Timbercreek II, Phase III Homeowners' Association (hereinafter the "Homeowners Association"). It is understood that the Homeowners' Association includes Phase III, Phase IV, and subsequent phases of Timber Creek II.
- Section 2. Definitions. The capitalized words and terms used but not otherwise defined herein shall be deemed to have the same meanings as are given those words and terms in that certain Declaration of Protective Covenants for Timbercreek II, Phase III Plat, Pottawatomie County, Kansas, dated December 3, 1994, which were recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds, Pottawatomie County, Kansas, in Book 283 at Page 419, which Protective Covenants were amended by the First Amendment to Declaration of protective Covenants for Timbercreek II, Phase III Plat, Pottawatomie County, Kansas, dated June 7, 1999, and recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds of Pottawatomie County, Kansas in Book 331 at Page 130, as the same may be amended from time to tome. (hereinafter the "Homeowners Association Declaration"), as the same may be from time to time amended.
- Section 3. *Principal Office.* The principal office shall be located at 4113 Lindsey Dr., in the City of Manhattan, Pottawatomie County, State of Kansas 66502.
- Section 4. Other Offices. The Homeowners Association may also have offices at such other places both within and without the State of Kansas as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine or the business of the Homeowners Association may require.

ARTICLE II Meetings of Members

Section 1. Place of Meeting. All meetings of the Homeowners Association Members shall be held at such hour and place either within or without the State of Kansas as shall be designated from time to time by the Board of Directors and stated in the notice of the meeting or in a duly executed waiver of notice thereof. In the event that the Board of Directors shall fail to fix the place for a meeting of Homeowners Association Members, such meeting shall be held at the Homeowners Association's principal office.

<u>Section 2</u>. Annual Meeting. Annual meetings of Homeowners Association Members then entitled to vote shall be held on the second Tuesday of March of each fiscal year (unless otherwise designated by the Board of Directors), or if that day be a legal holiday, on the next succeeding day not a legal holiday, at which they shall elect a Board of Directors and transact such other business as may properly be brought before the meeting.

Section 3. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Homeowners Association Members then entitled to vote, for any purpose or purposes, unless otherwise prescribed by statute or by the Articles of Incorporation, may be called by the Declarant, by the President, by the Board of Directors, or upon the written request of not less than 50 percent of the Homeowners Association Members then entitled to vote. Such request shall state the purpose or purposes of the proposed meeting, as described in Section 4 of this Article II. Business transacted at any special meeting of Homeowners Association Members shall be limited to the purposes stated in the notice.

Section 4. Notice. Written notice of each meeting of Homeowners Association Members stating the place, date, and hour of the meeting, and, in the case of a special meeting, the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called, shall be delivered or given to each Homeowners Association Member then entitled to vote not less than ten (10) nor more than thirty (30) days before the date of the meeting. If mailed, notice shall be deemed to have been given when deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, directed to the Homeowners Association Member at his or her address as it appears on the records of the Homeowners Association. Attendance of a Homeowners Association Member then entitled to vote at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except when the Homeowners Association Member attends a meeting for the express and exclusive purpose of objecting at the beginning of the meeting to the transaction of any business because the meeting was not lawfully called or convened. An affidavit of the Secretary or Assistant Secretary or of the transfer agent of the Homeowners Association that notice has been given shall be prima facie evidence of the facts stated therein in the absence of fraud.

Section 5. Homeowners Association Members' List. The officer, or any person designated by the Homeowners Association, who has charge of the membership records of the Homeowners Association shall prepare and make, at least ten (10) days before every meeting of Homeowners Association Members, a complete list of the Homeowners Association Members then entitled to vote, arranged in alphabetical order, and showing the addresses of each Homeowners Association Member. Such list shall be open to the examination of any Homeowners Association Member then entitled to vote, for any purpose germane to the meeting, during ordinary business hours, for a period of at least ten (10) days prior to the meeting, either at a place within the city where the meeting is to be held, which place shall be specified in the notice of the meeting, or, if not so specified, at the place where the meeting is to be held. The list shall also be produced and kept at the time and place of the meeting during the whole time thereof, and may be inspected by any Homeowners Association Member then entitled to vote who is present.

Section 6. Quorum. A majority of the Homeowners Association Members then entitled to vote at any meeting, represented in person or by proxy, shall constitute a quorum at all meetings

of the Homeowners Association Members for the transaction of business except as otherwise provided by statute or by the Articles of Incorporation. If, however, such quorum shall not be present or represented at any meeting of the Homeowners Association Members, the Homeowners Association Members then entitled to vote at any meeting, present in person or represented by proxy, shall have power to adjourn the meeting from time to time, without notice other than announcement at the meeting, until a quorum shall be present or represented; provided, however, if the adjournment is for more than thirty (30) days, or if after the adjournment a new record date is fixed for the adjourned meeting, a notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given to each Homeowners Association Member of record then entitled to vote at the meeting. At such adjourned meeting at which a quorum shall be present or represented, any business may be transacted which might have been transacted at the meeting as originally notified.

Section 7. Action by Homeowners Association Members. When a quorum is present at any meeting, the vote of a majority of the Homeowners Association Members then having voting power present in person or represented by proxy shall decide any question brought before such meeting, unless the question is one upon which by express provision of the statutes or of the Articles of Incorporation, a different vote is required, in which case, such express provision shall govern and control the decision on such question.

<u>Section 8</u>. *Voting*. As contemplated by the Declaration of Protective Covenants for Timbercreek II, Phase III, the Association shall have two classes of voting membership:

Class A. The Class A members shall be all Owners with the exception of the Declarant who shall be entitled to one vote for each Lot owned. When more than one person holds an interest in any Lot, all such persons shall be members. The vote for such Lot shall be exercised as they among themselves determine, but in no event shall more than one vote be cast with respect to any Lot.

Class B. The Class B member(s) shall be the Declarant who shall be entitled to four (4) votes for each Lot owned currently and four (4) votes for each future phase lot proposed per the Timbercreek II, Phase III Final Plat. Upon the sale of all Lots by Declarant, including those in future phases, Class B membership shall cease.

Section 9. Informal Action by Homeowners Association Members. Any action required to be taken at any annual or special meeting of Homeowners Association Members then entitled to vote, or any action which may be taken at any annual or special meeting of such Homeowners Association Members, may be taken without a meeting, without prior notice and without a vote, if a consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by all the Homeowners Association Members then entitled to vote with respect to the subject matter thereof. Such agreement or consent shall be filed by the Secretary in the Minute Book of the Homeowners Association.

ARTICLE III Directors

Section 1. Management of Homeowners Association. The business of the Homeowners Association shall be managed by its Board of Directors, which shall have full authority to fulfill the association responsibilities as provided in the Homeowners' Association Declaration, which may exercise all such powers of the Homeowners Association, and which may do all such lawful acts and things which are not otherwise required by statute, by the Homeowners Association Declaration, by the Articles of Incorporation, or by these Bylaws to be done by the Homeowners Association Members.

Section 2. Number. The initial number of Directors which shall constitute the whole Board shall be five (5). Thereafter, the number of Directors shall be not more than seven (7), and shall be selected as provided in the Articles of Incorporation. The Directors shall thereafter be elected at the annual meeting of the Homeowners Association Members, except as provided in Section 13 of this Article, and each Director elected shall hold office until his or her resignation, his or her removal, or his or her successor is elected and qualified, whichever first occurs.

Section 3. Meetings of the Newly Elected Board; Notice. The first annual meeting of each newly selected or elected Board of Directors shall be held (i) at such time and place either within or without the State of Kansas immediately after the meeting of Homeowners Association Members at which such newly elected Board was elected, and no notice of such meeting shall be necessary to the newly elected Directors in order legally to constitute the meeting, provided a quorum shall be present, or (ii) if a quorum shall not be present, at such time and place as shall be consented to in writing by a majority of the newly elected Directors, provided that written notice of such meeting shall be given to each of the other Directors in the same manner as provided in Section 6 of this Article III with respect to the giving of notice for special meetings of the Board except that it shall not be necessary to state the purpose of the meeting in such notice, or (iii) at such time and place as shall be consented to in writing by all of the newly elected Directors.

Every Director of the Homeowners Association, upon his or her election, shall qualify by accepting the office of Director, and his or her attendance at, or his or her written approval of the minutes of, any meeting of the Board subsequent to his or her election shall constitute his or her acceptance of such office; or he or she may execute such acceptance by a separate writing, which shall be placed in the Minute Book.

<u>Section 4</u>. *Regular Meetings*. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held without notice at such time and at such place, either within or without the State of Kansas, as shall from time to time be determined by the Board and in any manner, including by means of conference telephone or similar communications equipment as provided in Section 7 of Article III of these Bylaws, permitted under the Kansas Corporation Code, as amended.

- Section 5. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called at any time by the Declarant, the President, or by any two (2) or more of the Directors. The place may be within or without the State of Kansas as designated in the Notice, as described in Section 6 of this Article III.
- Section 6. Notice of Special Meetings. Written notice of each special meeting of the Board, stating the place, day and hour of the meeting and the purpose or purposes thereof, shall be mailed to each Director addressed to him or her at his or her residence or usual place of business at least three (3) days before the day on which the meeting is to be held, or shall be sent to him or her by telegram, or delivered to him or her personally, at least two (2) days before the day on which the meeting is to be held. If mailed, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered when it is deposited in the United States mail with postage thereon addressed to the Director at his residence or usual place of business. The notice may be given by any officer having authority to call the meeting. Any meeting of the Board of Directors shall be a legal meeting without any notice thereof having been given if all Directors shall be present.
- Section 7. Meetings by Conference Telephone or Similar Communications Equipment. Unless otherwise restricted by the Articles of Incorporation, Directors, or any committee designated by the Board, may participate in a meeting of the Board or committee by means of conference telephone or similar communications equipment by means of which all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other, and participation in a meeting pursuant hereto shall constitute presence in person at such meeting.
- Section 8. Quorum. At all meetings of the Board, a majority of the Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and the act of a majority of the Directors present at any meeting at which there is a quorum shall be the act of the Board of Directors, except as may be otherwise specifically provided by statute, by the Homeowners Association Declaration, or by the Articles of Incorporation. If a quorum shall not be present at any meeting of the Board of Directors, the Directors present thereat may adjourn the meeting from time to time, without notice other than announcement at the meeting, until a quorum shall be present.
- Section 9. Informal Action by Directors. Any action required or permitted to be taken at any meeting of the Board of Directors or of any committee thereof may be taken without a meeting, if all members of the Board or committee, as the case may be, consent thereto in writing, and the writing or writings are filed with the minutes of proceedings of the Board or committee.
- Section 10. Designation of Committees. The Board of Directors may, by resolution passed by a majority of the whole Board, designate one or more committees, each committee to consist of one or more of the Directors. Pursuant to the Declaration referred to above, the Board shall establish an Architectural Control Committee which shall be a standing committee. The Board may designate one or more Directors as alternate members of any committee, who may replace any absent member or member who has previously resigned at any meeting of the committee. The member or members thereof present at any meeting, whether or not he or she or they constitute a quorum, may

unanimously appoint another member of the Board of Directors to act at the meeting in the place of any such absent or previously resigned member. Any such committee, to the extent provided in the resolution of the Board of Directors, shall have and may exercise all the powers and authority of the Board of Directors in the management of the business and affairs of the Homeowners Association, and may authorize the seal of the Homeowners Association to be affixed to all papers which may require such seal; but no such committee shall have the power or authority in reference to amending the Articles of Incorporation, adopting an agreement of merger or consolidation, recommending to the Homeowners Association members the sale, lease, or exchange of all or substantially all of the Homeowners Association's property and assets, recommending to the Homeowners Association Members a dissolution of the Homeowners Association or a revocation of a dissolution, or amending the Bylaws of the Homeowners Association. Such committee or committees shall have such name or names as may be determined from time to time by resolution adopted by the Board of Directors.

Section 11. *Minutes of Committee Meetings*. Each committee shall keep regular minutes of its meetings and report the same to the Board of Directors when required.

Section 12. Vacancies. Any vacancies, however created, and newly created directorships resulting from any increase in the authorized number of Directors may be filled by a majority of the Directors then in office, even if less than a quorum, or by a sole remaining Director. The Directors so chosen shall hold office until the next annual election and until their successors are duly elected and qualified, unless sooner displaced. If there are no Directors in office, then an election of Directors may be held in the manner provided by statute. If, at the time of filling any vacancy or any newly created directorship, the Directors then in office shall constitute less than a majority of the whole Board (as constituted immediately prior to any such increase), the Declarant, in its discretion, may summarily fill any such vacancies or newly created directorships, or replace the directors chosen by the Directors then in office.

Section 13. Removal of Director. One or more Directors, whether elected or appointed by the Directors, may be removed from office, with or without cause, at any time by a majority of the Members then entitled to vote at an election of Directors.

Section 14. Resignations. Any Director may resign at any time upon written notice to the Homeowners Association. Such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein or, if no time is specified therein, shall take effect upon receipt thereof by the Homeowners Association, and unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

ARTICLE IV Officers

Section 1. *Manner of Selection; Authorized Officers.* The officers of the Homeowners Association shall be elected by the Board of Directors at each annual meeting, or at such other time as the Board deems necessary or appropriate, as provided in Section 2 of this Article IV, and such

officers shall include a President, a Secretary, and a Treasurer. The Board of Directors may also elect a Chairman of the Board, one (1) or more Vice Presidents, and one (1) or more Assistant Secretaries or Assistant Treasurers, and such other officers as it deems necessary to hold offices, to exercise such powers and to perform such duties as shall be determined from time to time by the Board of Directors. Any number of offices may be held by the same person.

- <u>Section 2</u>. *Time for Selection of Officers*. Officers of the Homeowners Association shall be elected by the Board of Directors at each of its annual meetings, immediately following the annual meeting of Homeowners Association Members, or at such other time as the Board deems necessary or appropriate to fill vacancies as provided by Article IV, Section 5.
- <u>Section 3</u>. *Appointment of Agents*. The Board of Directors may appoint such other agents as it shall deem necessary or advisable to exercise such powers and perform such duties as shall be determined from time to time by the Directors.
- <u>Section 4</u>. *Expenses*. The expenses of all officers and agents of the Homeowners Association shall be reimbursed by the Board of Directors.
- Section 5. Term. Each officer of the Homeowners Association shall hold office until his or her resignation, his or her removal, or his or her successor is duly elected and qualified, whichever first occurs. Any officer elected or appointed by the Board of Directors may be removed at any time, with or without cause, by the affirmative vote of a majority of the Board of Directors. Any vacancy occurring in any office of the Homeowners Association shall be filled by the Board of Directors.
- Section 6. *Powers and Duties.* The officers of the Homeowners Association shall have the following powers and duties:

President

The President shall be the chief executive and operating officer of the Homeowners Association and shall perform such duties and have such powers as are provided in the Homeowners Association Declaration or as the Board of Directors may from time to time prescribe. The President shall preside at all meetings of the Homeowners Association Members and Directors, except that if the President is not available to preside at a meeting of the Board of Directors, the President shall designate a member of the Board to so preside.

Vice President

The Vice President or Vice Presidents, if elected, shall perform such duties and have such powers as the Board of Directors may from time to time prescribe or which the President may from time to time delegate. In the absence of the President or in the event of his or her inability or refusal to act, the Vice President (or in the event there be more than one Vice President, the Vice Presidents

in the order designated, or in the absence of any designation, then in the order of their election) shall perform the duties of the President in his or her capacity as an officer (and not as a Director) of the Homeowners Association, and when so acting, shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon the President.

Secretary and Assistant Secretary

The Secretary or Assistant Secretary, if elected, shall record all proceedings of the meetings of the Board of Directors and all meetings of the Homeowners Association Members in a book to be kept for that purpose and shall perform like duties for the standing committees when required. The Secretary may also give, or cause to be given, notice of all meetings of the Homeowners Association Members and special meetings of the Board of Directors, and shall perform such other duties as may be prescribed in the Homeowners Association Declaration or by the Board of Directors or which the President may from time to time delegate. The Secretary, or such person as the Homeowners Association designates, shall have custody of the corporate seal of the Homeowners Association (if any) and he or she, or such designated person, shall have authority to affix the corporate seal to any instrument requiring it. When so affixed, such instrument may be attested by the signature of the Secretary or the signature of an Assistant Secretary. The Board of Directors may give general authority to any other officer to affix the seal of the Homeowners Association and to attest the affixing by his or her signature.

The Assistant Secretary, or if there be one, shall, in the absence of the Secretary or in the event of his or her inability or refusal to act, perform the duties and exercise the powers of the Secretary and shall perform such other duties and have such other powers as the Board of Directors may from time to rime prescribe, or which the President may from time to time delegate.

Treasurer and Assistant Treasurer

The Treasurer shall have the custody of the Homeowners Association's funds and securities and shall keep full and accurate accounts of receipts and disbursements in books belonging to the Homeowners Association and shall deposit all moneys and other valuable effects in the name and to the credit of Homeowners Association in such depositories as may be designated by the Board of Directors.

Subject to the provisions of Article VI, Section 3, the Treasurer shall disburse the funds of the Homeowners Association, keeping appropriate record of such disbursements, and shall render to the Board of Directors, at its regular meetings, or when the Board of Directors so requires, an account of all his or her transactions as Treasurer and of the financial condition of the Homeowners Association.

If required by the Board of Directors, the Treasurer, or any Assistant Treasurer, shall give the Homeowners Association a bond (which shall be renewed at least every six (6) years, unless sooner

required by the Board of Directors) in such sum and with such surety or sureties as shall be satisfactory to the Board of Directors for the faithful performance of the duties of his or her office.

The Assistant Treasurer, or if there shall be one, shall, in the absence of the Treasurer or in the event of his or her inability or refusal to act, perform the duties and exercise the powers of the Treasurer and shall perform such other duties and have such other powers as the Board of Directors may from time to time prescribe, or which the President may from time to time delegate.

ARTICLE V General Provisions

Section 1. *Prohibition of Dividends.* No dividends may be declared by the Board of Directors. The Homeowners Association is a corporation not organized for profit under Kansas law, and no part of its net earnings or income shall be distributed to its Members.

Section 2. Special Purpose Reserves. As contemplated by the Homeowners Association Declaration, there may be set aside out of any funds of the Homeowners Association such sum or sums as the Directors from time to time, in their absolute discretion, deem proper as a reserve or reserves to meet contingencies, or for repairing or maintaining any property of the Homeowners Association, or for such other purpose as the Directors deem conducive to the interests of the Homeowners Association, and the Directors may modify or abolish any such reserve in the manner in which it was created.

Section 3. Checks. All checks or demands for money and notes of the Homeowners Association shall be signed by the Treasurer or such officer or officers or such other person or persons as the Board of Directors may from time to time authorize.

Section 4. No Seal. The Homeowners Association shall have no seal.

ARTICLE VI Indemnification of Directors, Officers, Employees, and Agents

Section 1. Indemnification Generally. The Homeowners Association shall indemnify the Declarant, any Director, officer, employee, or agent of the Homeowners Association ("Indemnified Person") who was or is a party, or is threatened to be made a party, to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit, or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative, or investigative, other than an action by or in the right of the Homeowners Association, by reason of the fact that the Indemnified Person is or was a Director, officer, employee, or agent of the Homeowners Association, or is or was serving at the request of the Homeowners Association as a director, officer, employee, partner or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, against expenses, judgments, fines, and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by the

Indemnified Person in connection with such action, suit, or proceeding, including attorney fees, if the Indemnified Person acted in good faith and in a manner the Indemnified Person reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the Homeowners Association; and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe the Indemnified Person's conduct was unlawful. The termination of any action, suit or proceeding by judgment, order, settlement, conviction, or upon a plea of *nolo contendere* or its equivalent, shall not, of itself, create a presumption that the Indemnified Person did not act in good faith and in a manner which the Indemnified Person reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the Homeowners Association, and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had reasonable cause to believe that the Indemnified Person's conduct was unlawful.

Indemnification in Derivative Actions. The Homeowners Association shall Section 2. indemnify any Indemnified Person who was or is a party, or is threatened to be made a party, to any threatened, pending or completed action or suit by or in the right of the Homeowners Association to procure a judgment in its favor by reason of the fact that the Indemnified Person is or was the Declarant or a Director, officer, employee or agent of the Homeowners Association, or is or was serving at the request of the Homeowners Association as a director, officer, employee, partner or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, against expenses actually and reasonably incurred by the Indemnified Person in connection with the defense or settlement of such action or suit, including attorney fees, if the Indemnified Person acted in good faith and in a manner the Indemnified Person reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to, the best interests of the Homeowners Association and except that no indemnification shall be made in respect of any claim, issue, or matter as to which the Indemnified Person shall have been adjudged to be liable to the Homeowners Association unless and only to the extent that the court in which such action or suit was brought shall determine upon application that, despite the adjudication of liability, but in view of all the circumstances of the case, the Indemnified Person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnity for such expenses which the court shall deem proper.

Section 3. Amount of Indemnification. To the extent that an Indemnified Person has been successful on the merits or otherwise in defense of any action, suit or proceeding referred to in Sections 1 or 2 of this Article, or in defense of any claim, issue or matter therein, the Indemnified Person shall be indemnified against expenses actually and reasonably incurred in connection therewith, including attorney fees.

Section 4. Standards for Discretionary Indemnification. Any indemnification of an Indemnified Person by the Homeowners Association pursuant to Section 1 or 2 of this Article, unless ordered by a court, shall be made by the Homeowners Association only as authorized in the specific case upon a determination that indemnification of the Indemnified Person is proper in the circumstances because the Indemnified Person has met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in Sections 1 and 2 of this Article. Such determination shall be made (a) by the Board of Directors by a majority vote of a quorum consisting of Directors who were not parties to such action, suit or proceeding, or (b) if such a quorum is not obtainable, or even if obtainable, should a quorum of

disinterested Directors so direct, by independent legal counsel in a written opinion, or (c) by vote of a majority of the Homeowners Association Members having voting power.

Section 5. Advances of Expenses. Expenses incurred by an Indemnified Person in defending a civil or criminal action, suit or proceeding may be paid by the Homeowners Association in advance of the final disposition of such action, suit or proceeding upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of the Indemnified Person to repay such amount if it is ultimately determined that the Indemnified Person is not entitled to be indemnified by the Homeowners Association as authorized in this Article.

Section 6. Other Rights of Indemnified Person. The indemnification and Advancement of expenses provided by, or granted pursuant to, the other sections of this Article shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which an Indemnified Person seeking indemnification or advancement of expenses may be entitled under the Homeowners Association Declaration, by any agreement, vote of Homeowners Association Members or disinterested Directors, or otherwise, both as to action in his or her official capacity and as to action in another capacity while holding such office.

Section 7. Insurance. The Homeowners Association may purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any Indemnified Person, including the Declarant or any person who is or was a Director, officer, employee, or agent of the Homeowners Association, or is or was serving at the request of the Homeowners Association as a director, officer, employee, partner, or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, or other enterprise against any liability asserted against him or her and incurred by him or her in any such capacity, or arising out of his or her status as such, whether or not the Homeowners Association would otherwise be authorized to indemnify him or her against such liability under the provisions of this Article.

Section 8. Definition of Homeowners Association. For purposes of this Article, references to "the Homeowners Association" shall include, in addition to any Architectural Review Committee or other board or committee, any constituent corporation, or other board or committee of a constituent absorbed in a consolidation or merger which, if its separate existence had continued, would have had power and authority to indemnify its directors, officers and employee or agent of such constituent corporation, or is or was serving at the request of such constituent corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, shall stand in the same position under this Article with respect to the resulting or surviving corporation as the Indemnified Person would have with respect to such constituent corporation if its separate existence had continued.

Section 9. Definition of Other Enterprises. For purposes of this Article, references to "other enterprises" shall include employee benefit plans; references to "fines" shall include, without limitation, any civil money penalties imposed by any governmental agency and any excise taxes assessed on a person with respect to any employee benefit plan; and references to serving at the

request of the Homeowners Association shall include any services as a Director, officer, employee, or agent of the Homeowners Association which imposes duties on, or involves services by, the Indemnified Person with respect to an employee benefit plan, its participants or beneficiaries; and a person who acted in good faith and in a manner the Indemnified Person reasonably believed to be in the interest of the participants and beneficiaries of an employee benefit plan shall be deemed to have acted in a manner "not opposed to the best interests of the Homeowners Association" as referred to in this Article.

Section 10. Extent of Indemnification. The indemnification and advancement of expenses provided by, or granted pursuant to, this Article shall continue as to an Indemnified Person who has ceased to be a Director, officer, employee, or agent and shall inure to the benefit of the Indemnified Person's heirs, executors, and administrators, unless otherwise provided by provision of written contract between the Homeowners Association and the Indemnified Person or by resolution adopted by the Homeowners Association's Board of Directors at any time in its sole discretion, with respect to which resolution no notice need be given to the Indemnified Person. If the Indemnified Person performs services or duties for the Homeowners Association which entitle the Indemnified Person to be indemnified or to receive advanced payment of expenses hereunder, and is at the same time also entitled to receive indemnification with respect to such services or duties from a third party, then the Homeowners Association shall indemnify or advance only that portion of the Indemnified Person's expenses which the Indemnified Person has been unable to receive (after making a reasonable effort satisfactory to the Homeowners Association) from the third party.

ARTICLE VII Amendments

These Bylaws may be altered, amended, or repealed or new Bylaws may be adopted upon approval of not less than a majority of the Board of Directors; no amendment shall be contrary to or supersede the provisions of the Homeowners' Declaration and the Articles of Incorporation.

ARTICLE VIII Miscellaneous

<u>Section 1</u>. *Construction*. The titles of the paragraphs and subparagraphs have been inserted as a matter of convenience and reference only, and shall not control or affect the meaning or construction of these Bylaws. Use of the masculine gender shall also be deemed to refer to the feminine gender and neuter gender and the singular to the plural unless the context clearly requires otherwise.

Section 2. Conflict with Homeowners' Association Declaration; Incorporation of Protective Covenants Provisions in Bylaws. These Bylaws are intended to be construed and interpreted in a manner consistent with the Homeowners' Association Declaration; however, if such

consistency is not possible through reasonable construction and interpretation of these Bylaws, the provisions of the Homeowners' Association Declaration shall control. Any right, power, authority, discretion, or obligation granted, authorized, or imposed by the provisions of the Homeowners' Association Declaration shall be deemed to be so granted, authorized, or imposed to the same extent and with the same effect as if such provisions were set forth at length in these bylaws.

CERTIFICATION

]	(100) Mans	, Secretary of the Timbercreek II, Phase III Homeowners Assoc	ciation.
		e and foregoing is a true and complete copy of the Bylaws	
Timber	reek II, Phase III H	meowners Association, as adopted by the Directors as of the	28 TH
day of _	MARCH	2001.	

MARCH 28 , 2001

Secretary

DATED: